
JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 1   

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
TUESDAY  10:00 A.M. JUNE 24, 2014 
 
PRESENT: 

David Humke, Chairman 
Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson 

Marsha Berkbigler, Commissioner  
Kitty Jung, Commissioner 

Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk (10:05 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.) 
Jaime Dellera, Deputy Clerk (4:30 p.m. – 5:44 p.m.) 

John Slaughter, County Manager 
Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel 

 
 The Washoe County Board of Commissioners convened at 10:05 a.m. in 
regular session in the Commission Chambers of the Washoe County Administration 
Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada. Following the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the flag of our Country, the Clerk called the roll and the Board conducted the following 
business: 
 
14-0567 AGENDA ITEM 3 – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The Commission will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. 
Comments are to be made to the Commission as a whole.” 
 
 Sam Dehne discussed the Reno Gazette-Journal, the Board’s 
appointments to the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority, and the results of the Primary 
Election. 
 
14-0568 AGENDA ITEM 4 – ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners’/Manager’s Announcements, Requests for 
Information, Topics for Future Agendas, Statements Relating to Items Not on the 
Agenda and any ideas and suggestions for greater efficiency, cost effectiveness and 
innovation in County government. (No discussion among Commissioners will take 
place on this item.)” 
 
 Commissioner Hartung stated he visited Sheriff Deputy Jacob Jensen, who 
was involved in a motorcycle accident on Geiger Grade on Saturday. He said he was 
looking forward to working with the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT), 



PAGE 2  JUNE 24, 2014  

Regional Transportation Commission (RTC), and the Sheriff’s Office on installing more 
robust signage on Mt. Rose Highway, Geiger Grade, and other potentially dangerous 
roads during motorcycle events. He said his heart went out to all of the families involved.  
 
 Chairman Humke said he visited the Huffaker Cemetery, which dated 
back to approximately 1852 or 1859 and had been a County park for quite some time. He 
stated it had 100 graves, but only 27 were marked because the grave markers had been 
taken. He spoke about the history of the Huffaker family. He said donations were being 
sought to rehabilitate the Cemetery.   
 
14-0569 AGENDA ITEM 5 - PROCLAMATION 
 
Agenda Subject: “Proclamation--July 2014 Bear Logic Month.” 
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler read the Proclamation. She said this message 
was important for everyone to hear, because bears had been coming into the City of Reno 
due to the lack of water.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 5 be adopted. 
 
14-0570 AGENDA ITEM 6 - PROCLAMATION 
 
Agenda Subject: “Proclamation--July 2014 Parks and Recreation Month.” 
 
 Commissioner Jung said the Open Space and Regional Parks Commission 
wanted to be more involved in terms of advocacy and identifying priorities for the next 
budget cycle. She read and presented the Proclamation to Sarah Chvilicek, Open Space 
and Regional Parks Commission Chair. Ms. Chvilicek encouraged everyone to visit, 
support, and be good stewards of our parks.  
 
 In response to the call for public comment, Nathan Daniel commended the 
Commission for declaring July Parks and Recreation Month. He stated the parks were 
essential to the region’s quality of life and staff worked tirelessly since all of the budget 
cuts to maintain them. He noted there were Sage Grouse leks in Washoe County’s open 
space, but there was no budget for open space management. 
 
 Sam Dehne said he favored the proclamations and resolution being 
presented today. He stated the parks gave the citizens a great bang for their buck.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 6 be adopted. 
 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 3   

14-0571 AGENDA ITEM 7 – RESOLUTION 
 
Agenda Subject: “Resolution--in Support of Federal Legislation Addressing Sage-
Grouse.” 
 
 Commissioner Hartung read and presented the Resolution to Shaaron 
Netherton, Friends of Nevada Wilderness Executive Director. Ms. Netherton thanked the 
Commission for their leadership on this really tough issue facing Nevada. She felt 
Nevadans could always find a solution by working together. She asked everyone to 
continue to protect the Sage Grouse and our economy. 
 
 In response to the call for public comment, Helen Tyler said she supported 
the Resolution. 
 
 Larry Johnson thanked the Commission for taking this important step. He 
stated it was important to work with Nevada’s congressional delegation to do what was 
best for the Sage Grouse. He said it would be somewhat devastating to Nevada’s rural 
economy if the Sage Grouse was listed as an endangered species. He placed a copy of the 
Proposal for Sage Grouse Conservation and a New Congressional Land Designation 
document on file with the Clerk. 
 
 Chairman Humke noted the Resolution was exceptionally well crafted and 
was a fantastic description of the bipartisan effort of Senators Dean Heller and Harry 
Reid and the rest of Nevada’s congressional delegation. He thanked our State partners, 
led by the Governor and the Executive branch, in helping to find the answers to satisfy 
those who wanted the Sage Grouse listed.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7 be adopted. 
The Resolution for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-0572 AGENDA ITEM 9 – APPEARANCE 
 
Agenda Subject: “Appearance: Robert Larkin and Nat Carasali, Washoe County’s 
Appointees to the Reno-Tahoe Airport Board of Trustees. Presentation and update 
on Airport. ” 
 
 Marily Mora, Reno Tahoe Airport Authority President and CEO, noted the 
Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority was in the first year of its five-year plan. She conducted a 
Powerpoint Presentation, which reviewed the Airport’s strategic priorites to increase air 
service, general aviation, cargo development, new cargo opportunites, and economic 
development; the Reno-Stead Airport; the strategic priority of a positive environment; air 
service being the number one priority; air service overview; having a new approach to air 
service; air service development; review of key economic indicators;  how we can effect 
change; air service development before and now; the goal; stakeholder groups impacted 
by air service development; develop resources through stakeholder groups; and 



PAGE 4  JUNE 24, 2014  

legislative assistance in the form of aviation tax abatements and a transportation 
enhancement fund. A copy of her presentation was placed on file with the Clerk. 
 
 Chairman Humke said the Reno-Tahoe International Airport was one of 
main engines of economic growth and development in the region.  
 
 Chairman Humke noted maintaining an adequate number of rental cars in 
the area had not been a priority for the rental car companies, which made it sometimes 
hard to find a rental car on a busy weekend. He asked if that situation still existed. Ms. 
Mora believed it did but, in recent years especially during major events, they had worked 
very hard with the local rental car companies to make sure more vehicles were available 
during those events. She stated because they had been more proactive, she believed that 
issue had not been occurring to the same extent it had been in the past.  
 
 Commissioner Jung thanked Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Trustee Bob 
Larkin and Trustee Nat Carasali for the expert work they did representing the Washoe 
County Commission on the Board of Trustees. She thanked Trustee Carasali for 
encouraging local investment by business people who would benefit from having more 
air services. Ms. Mora agreed Trustee Carasali had been a champion for getting the 
business community to support the marketing of new air services.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung said the Reno-Stead Airport should be looked at as 
a multi-use facility and not relegated to just air uses. Ms. Mora agreed. She stated Stead 
was called the “gem,” because its 5,000 acres provided a lot of opportunity. She said one 
company submitted a request for qualifications to develop 3,500 acres, which she felt 
meant there would be more job development going on at the Reno-Stead Airport. 
Commissioner Hartung asked if the infrastructure would be put in prior to any 
development, so it would be ready first, or would the development have to precede the 
infrastructure. Ms. Mora said that would have to be worked out with the developer, but 
they were looking at the developer bringing in much of the infrastructure.  
 
 There was no public comment or action taken on this item. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA – ITEMS 8A THROUGH 8H 
 
14-0573 AGENDA ITEM 8A 
 
Agenda Subject: “Cancel July 15, 2014 County Commission meeting.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8A be approved. 
 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 5   

14-0574 AGENDA ITEM 8B – HEALTH DISTRICT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve and execute the Permit for Disinterment of Human 
Remains (Patricia Kice), as allowed under NRS 451.050, Subsection 2--Health 
District. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8B be approved and 
executed. 
 
14-0575 AGENDA ITEM 8C – MANAGER 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Amendment #1 to Intrastate Interlocal Contract 
between Public Agencies, a contract between the State of Nevada acting by and 
through its Department of Health and Human Services Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health Lake's Crossing Center and Washoe County for professional 
services to conduct mental health evaluations of defendants; amending amount 
$57,266 biennium, $28,633 annually for a total not to exceed $478,700 for biennium, 
$239,350 annually, to accurately reflect the rates and terms set forth in the original 
agreement effective retroactive July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2015. Total was incorrectly 
calculated as $421,434 biennium, $210,717 annually--Manager. (All Commission 
Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8C be approved. Amendment 
#1 to Intrastate Interlocal Contract for same is attached hereto and made a part of the 
minutes thereof. 
 
14-0576 AGENDA ITEM 8D(1) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve a State of Nevada Importer and Wholesale Dealer of 
Wine, Liquor and Beer License for Alan Sauvage, dba Vin Sauvage, LLC, and if 
approved, authorize each Commissioner to sign the State of Nevada Application for 
License for Importer and Wholesale Dealer of Wine, Liquor, and Beer with 
direction for the County Clerk to attest the license application. (Commission District 
5.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8D(1) be approved, 
authorized, executed, and directed. 



PAGE 6  JUNE 24, 2014  

 
14-0577 AGENDA ITEM 8D(2) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Reject all bids for the Detention Center Housing Unit Three Air 
Handler Replacement Project and authorize staff to rebid the project. (Commission 
Districts 3.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8D(2) be approved. 
 
14-0578 AGENDA ITEM 8D(3) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve second extension of the Interlocal Agreement between 
Washoe County, Carson City, Douglas County, Nevada State Lands, Nevada State 
Parks, Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, Tahoe Transportation District, USDA 
Forest Service-Lake Tahoe Basin Management Unit, and Incline Village General 
Improvement District for the implementation of the Lake Tahoe Bike Path Project.  
(All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8D(3) be approved. The 
Second Extension to Interlocal Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of 
the minutes thereof. 
 
14-0579 AGENDA ITEM 8D(4) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve an On Our Way Community Grant Program Sub-
Recipient Agreement between Washoe County and Tahoe Regional Planning 
Agency [$109,733 - no matching funds required] for the period of June 24, 2014, 
through June 30, 2016; and if accepted, authorize the Director of the Community 
Services Department to execute the Sub-Recipient Agreement and all associated 
grant related documents; and direct Finance to make the necessary budget 
adjustments. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8D(4) be approved, 
authorized, executed, and directed. 
 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 7   

14-0580 AGENDA ITEM 8D(5) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Request that the Chairman appoint, and the Board of County 
Commissioners approve the appointment of, Kristina Hill to the Washoe County 
Board of Adjustment (District 1) for a term beginning July 1, 2014, and ending June 
30, 2018, or until such time as a successor is appointed. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8D(5) be appointed and 
approved. 
 
14-0581 AGENDA ITEM 8D(6) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Request that the Chairman appoint, and the Board of County 
Commissioners approve the appointment of, Philip Horan (District 1) and Larry 
Chesney (At-Large, North of the River) to the Washoe County Planning 
Commission each for a term beginning July 1, 2014, and ending June 30, 2018, or 
until such time as a successor is appointed. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8D(6) be appointed and 
approved. 
 
14-0582 AGENDA ITEM 8D(7) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Request that the Chairman appoint, and the Board of County 
Commissioners approve the appointment of, James Barnes to the Regional Planning 
Commission for an unexpired term beginning June 24, 2014, and ending June 30, 
2015, or until such time as a successor is appointed; and approve the reappointment 
of, D.J. Whittemore to the Regional Planning Commission for a term beginning July 
1, 2014, and ending June 30, 2017, or until such time as a successor is appointed.  
(All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8D(7) be appointed, 
reappointed, and approved. 
 



PAGE 8  JUNE 24, 2014  

14-0583 AGENDA ITEM 8E(1) – HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve the Collective Bargaining Agreements with the Washoe 
County Nurses Association (WCNA) for the Non-Supervisory and Supervisory 
bargaining units for the periods July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015; ratify same: a 
1.5% Cost of Living Adjustment in base wage effective July 1, 2014; a 1% Cost of 
Living Adjustment in base wage effective January 1, 2015; and effective in Pay 
Period #16/14 (07/14/14 – 07/27/14) pay a recognition one-time only lump sum 
payment of $1,000 for eligible employees. FY14/15 fiscal impact is estimated at 
$69,500. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 Commissioner Hartung thanked everyone involved in the Collective 
Bargaining process, because everyone did an amazing job on this and the other 
agreements. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8E(1) be approved, ratified, 
and paid.  
 
14-0584 AGENDA ITEM 8E(2) – HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Collective Bargaining Agreements with the Washoe 
County Sheriff’s Supervisory Deputies Association bargaining unit for the period of 
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2016; ratify same: a 2% Cost of Living Adjustment in 
base wage and Salary Structure Adjustment effective July 1, 2014; a 1% Cost of 
Living Adjustment in base wage effective January 1, 2015; and if approved, 
authorize Chairman to execute Collective Bargaining Agreement upon completion.  
Fiscal impact is estimated at $537,020. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8E(2) be approved, ratified, 
authorized, and executed. 
 
14-0585 AGENDA ITEM 8E(3) – HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Collective Bargaining Agreements with the Washoe 
County Sheriff’s Deputies Association bargaining unit for the period of July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2015; ratify same: a 2% Cost of Living Adjustment in base wage 
effective July 1, 2014; a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment in base wage effective 
January 1, 2015; and if approved, authorize Chairman to execute Collective 
Bargaining Agreement upon completion. Fiscal impact is estimated at $1,070,288.  
(All Commission Districts.)” 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 9   

 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8E(3) be approved, ratified, 
authorized, and executed. 
 
14-0586 AGENDA ITEM 8F(1) – JUVENILE SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Interlocal Agreement between the Board of Regents of 
the Nevada System of Higher Education (University of Nevada, Reno) and Washoe 
County, through its Department of Juvenile Services, which establishes a 
cooperative program for students from the Department of Health Science and 
CASAT to earn school credit and enhance their career development under the 
supervision of Department of Juvenile Services staff. The Interlocal Agreement shall 
be effective upon board approval through June 30, 2017. (All Commission 
Districts.)”               
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8F(1) be approved. The 
Interlocal Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-0587 AGENDA ITEM 8F(2) – JUVENILE SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Interlocal Agreement between the Board of Regents of 
the Nevada System of Higher Education (University of Nevada, Reno) and Washoe 
County, through its Department of Juvenile Services, which establishes a 
cooperative program for students from the School of Social Work to earn school 
credit and enhance their career development under the supervision of Department 
of Juvenile Services’ staff. The Interlocal Agreement shall be effective upon board 
approval through June 30, 2017. (All Commission Districts.)”      
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8F(2) be approved. The 
Interlocal Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-0588 AGENDA ITEM 8F(3) – JUVENILE SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve the Interlocal Agreement between the Board of Regents 
of the Nevada System of Higher Education (University of Nevada, Reno) and 
Washoe County, through its Department of Juvenile Services, which establishes a 
cooperative program for students from the Human Development and Family 



PAGE 10  JUNE 24, 2014  

Studies to earn school credit and enhance their career development under the 
supervision of Department of Juvenile Services staff. The Interlocal Agreement shall 
be effective upon board approval through June 30, 2017. (All Commission 
Districts.)”          
  
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8F(3) be approved. The 
Interlocal Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-0589 AGENDA ITEM 8G(1) – SHERIFF  
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Agreement for Contract Legal Services between the 
County of Washoe on behalf of the Washoe County Sheriff’s Office and Patrick 
Dolan [$90,000] for the period from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015. (All Commission 
Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8G(1) be approved. 
 
14-0590 AGENDA ITEM 8G(2) – SHERIFF  
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Interlocal Agreement between the City of Reno on 
behalf of the Reno Police Department, Washoe County on behalf of the Washoe 
County Sheriff’s Office and the District Attorney, and the City of Sparks on behalf 
of the Sparks Police Department to maintain a regional sex offender notification 
unit for the purpose of tracking, monitoring, investigation, public notification, and 
prosecution of cases involving sex offenders; for a 1 year term beginning June 24, 
2014; to be renewed annually unless cancelled by mutual agreement; all cost of unit 
are covered by the individual agencies. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8G(2) be approved. The 
Interlocal Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-0591 AGENDA ITEM 8H -- DONATIONS  
 
Agenda Subject: “Accept various military surplus equipment [overall estimated 
value $275,114.91] no charge to the County donated to the Washoe County Sheriff’s 
Office to be utilized to support Detention Response Team (DRT), K9 Units and 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 11   

Special Weapons and Tactics (SWAT) units of WCSO--Sheriff. (All Commission 
Districts.)” 
 
 On behalf of the Board, Commissioner Jung thanked the Defense 
Reutilization and Marketing Office (DRMO) for donating the surplus military equipment, 
which would be used to support various units in the Washoe County Sheriff’s Office.  
  
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8H be accepted. 
 
 BLOCK VOTE -- AGENDA ITEMS 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 

23, 24, AND 25 
 
14-0592 AGENDA ITEM 14 – COMPTROLLER  
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve the removal of uncollectible 
accounts receivables [$1,162,812.36]--Comptroller. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 14 be approved. 
 
14-0593 AGENDA ITEM 15 – DISTRICT COURT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve Professional Services Agreement for 
Drug Testing Services for Specialty Courts Division between the District Court, 
Washoe County, and Case Management Services of Nevada (CMS), [$128,412] plus 
actual cost of tests administered from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.  Total cost 
of the Agreement [not exceed $248,412]--District Court. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 15 be approved. 
 
14-0594 AGENDA ITEM 16 – MANAGER 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve a transfer from General Fund 
(Community Support-Community Special Projects) [$150,000], to the Parks Capital 
Improvement Fund for the construction of the greenhouse at Rancho San Rafael 
Regional Park; and direct Comptroller’s Office to make the appropriate budget 
adjustments--Manager. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 



PAGE 12  JUNE 24, 2014  

 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 16 be approved and directed. 
 
14-0595 AGENDA ITEM 17 – MANAGER 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to affirm appointment of Kevin Schiller as 
Interim Director of the Washoe County Regional Animal Services Department 
effective July 1, 2014--Manager. (All Commission Districts)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 17 be affirmed. 
 
14-0596 AGENDA ITEM 18 – SENIOR SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve Amendment #1 to Agreement in 
Support of Pro-Bono and Low-Cost Legal Services for Elderly for one-year 
extension of an existing support grant agreement between Washoe County and 
Washoe Legal Services [approximate annual amount not to exceed $65,000] funded 
by applicable court filing fees, for both fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year 2015, ending 
on June 30, 2015 in support of pro-bono and low-cost consumer related legal 
services for the elderly, and approve necessary resolution for same--Senior Services. 
(All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 18 be approved. The 
Resolution for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
  
14-0597 AGENDA ITEM 19 – SENIOR SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve Amendment #1 to Agreement in 
Support of Pro-Bono and Low Cost Legal Services for Elderly for one-year 
extension of an existing support grant agreement between Washoe County and 
Nevada Legal Services in support of pro-bono and low-cost consumer related legal 
services for the elderly [not to exceed $75,000 for fiscal year 2014 and $110,000 for 
fiscal year 2015], ending June 30, 2015 funded with Senior Citizens ad valorem Tax 
Fund and restricted donations, and approve necessary resolution for same; and, 
approve Amendment #1 to Lease Agreement between Washoe County and Nevada 
Legal Services to the extend the current lease agreement allowing Nevada Legal 
Services to use office space within the Washoe County Senior Center from July 1, 
2014 to June 30, 2015--Senior Services. (All Commission Districts.)”  



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 13   

 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 19 be approved. The 
Resolution for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-0598 AGENDA ITEM 20 – SENIOR SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve an Amendment #3 to The Food 
Management Services Agreement between Washoe County and Valley Services, 
Inc., for a new six-month term for the period July 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014, 
with an option for an additional six-month period at the discretion of the County, 
[approximate amount of $477,780] funded by applicable Aging and Disability 
Services Division grants, ad valorem and Indigent funds--Senior Services. (All 
Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 20 be approved. 
 
14-0599 AGENDA ITEM 21 – SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve Agreement for Independent Living 
Services between The Children’s Cabinet and Washoe County in response to 
Request for Proposal (RFP) #2902-14 [$425,983] for fiscal year 2015, with an option 
to renew for two additional one-year periods--Social Services. (All Commission 
Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 21 be approved. 
 
14-0600 AGENDA ITEM 22 – SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to authorize the Department of Social Services 
to expend [up to $373,000] in FY2014/2015 from Children’s Services Account 
710712 Family Preservation to benefit children in care and families who are clients 
of the Department in the most expedious manner to promote keeping families intact.  
These expenditures shall include the use of Special Purchase Orders, Purchase 
Orders, Procards to purchase specific items or Gift Cards to purchase food, support 
services, Thanksgiving and Christmas Food, Gifts as well as Adoption Day activities 
and expenses--Social Services. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 



PAGE 14  JUNE 24, 2014  

 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 22 be authorized. 
 
14-0601 AGENDA ITEM 23 – HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to appoint Paul Burr as Acting Chief 
Information Management Officer of the Technology Services Department with 10% 
temporary pay adjustment--Human Resources. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 23 be approved. 
 
14-0602 AGENDA ITEM 24 – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve Resolution sponsoring an 
amendment to the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan for the purpose of clarifying 
Regional Plan Policy 1.3.3, relating to the establishment of non-residential uses in 
the unincorporated county--Community Services. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 24 be approved. The 
Resolution for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-0603 AGENDA ITEM 25 – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve an Agreement for Professional 
Consulting Services between Washoe County and McClaren, Wilson & Lawrie, Inc., 
to provide specialty architectural design services for the Washoe County Medical 
Examiners Facility Project [$167,835]--Community Services. (All Commission 
Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 25 be approved. 
 
11:18 a.m. The Board convened as the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District 

(TMFPD) and the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) Board of Fire 
Commissioners. 

 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 15   

12:33 p.m. The Board recessed as the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District 
(TMFPD) and the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) Board of Fire 
Commissioners  

 
14-0604 AGENDA ITEM 12 – APPEARANCE 
 
Agenda Subject: “Appearance: Steve Weaver and Tim Rubald, Nevada Department 
of Conservation & Natural Resources, Conservation District Program. Presentation 
regarding the State Conservation District Program--Community Services. (All 
Commission Districts.)” 
 
 Bret Tyler, Washoe-Storey Conservation District Chairman, said Steve 
Weaver and Tim Rubald, Nevada Department of Conservation & Natural  Resources, 
Conservation District Program, had to leave. He said on behalf of the Conservation 
District, he was requesting the District’s funding from Washoe County be restored, which 
was lost around 2009 or 2010. He discussed what the Conservation District did, which 
included working to protect the Sage Grouse. He said the District’s Board members were 
all volunteers. He advised Storey County pitched in the money they cut, and the District 
was asking Washoe County for $25,000 to continue their efforts. He said the District was 
in dire straits because they had no staff and it was taxing them all to death.  
 
 Chairman Humke said the new budget was just approved, but there might 
be a possibility for an agenda item to do something. Mr. Tyler said the County would get 
its money’s worth just for the work the District did on the Sage Grouse. Chairman 
Humke said it was an important function. He stated if he and his associates who had to 
leave would like the opportunity to make their presentation, the Board would like to offer 
them the opportunity to do so. Mr. Tyler said they would like to come back and revisit 
this. 
 
 Commissioner Weber asked staff to see if there was any funding available 
and to bring this item back.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
14-0605 AGENDA ITEM 33 – CLOSED SESSION 
 
Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session for the purpose of discussing labor 
negotiations with Washoe County, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and/or 
Sierra Fire Protection District per NRS 288.220.” 
 
12:28 p.m. The Board recessed. 
 
1:45 p.m. The Board adjourned as the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District 

(TMFPD) and the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) Board of Fire 
Commissioners from their Closed Session. 

 



PAGE 16  JUNE 24, 2014  

3:05 p.m.  The Board reconvened as the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) 
with all members present. 

 
14-0606 AGENDA ITEM 26 – COMMUNITY SERVICES  
 
Agenda Subject: “Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance revising the 
Washoe County requirements and schedule of rates and charges for reclaimed water 
service within Washoe County by providing options for when an applicant may 
choose to pay required reclaimed water connection privilege fees. This Ordinance 
amends Ordinance No. 1299; and if approved, set the second reading and adoption 
for July 8, 2014--Community Services. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk, read the title for Bill No. 1716.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
  Bill No. 1716, entitled, "AN ORDINANCE REVISING THE 
WASHOE COUNTY REQUIREMENTS AND SCHEDULE OF RATES AND 
CHARGES FOR RECLAIMED WATER SERVICE WITHIN WASHOE 
COUNTY BY PROVIDING OPTIONS FOR WHEN AN APPLICANT MAY 
CHOOSE TO PAY REQUIRED RECLAIMED WATER CONNECTION 
PRIVILEGE FEES. THIS ORDINANCE AMENDS ORDINANCE NO. 1299," was 
introduced by Commissioner Weber, and legal notice for final action of adoption was 
directed. 
 
14-0607 AGENDA ITEM 27 – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance revising the 
Washoe County requirements and schedule of rates and charges and pretreatment 
program for sanitary sewer service within Washoe County by providing options for 
when an applicant may choose to pay required sanitary sewer connection privilege 
fees. This Ordinance amends Ordinance No. 1344; and if approved, set the second 
reading and adoption for July 8, 2014--Community Services. (All Commission 
Districts.)” 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk, read the title for Bill No. 1717.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
  Bill No. 1717, entitled, "AN ORDINANCE REVISING THE 
WASHOE COUNTY REQUIREMENTS AND SCHEDULE OF RATES AND 
CHARGES AND PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR SANITARY SEWER 
SERVICE WITHIN WASHOE COUNTY BY PROVIDING OPTIONS FOR 
WHEN AN APPLICANT MAY CHOOSE TO PAY REQUIRED SANITARY 
SEWER CONNECTION PRIVILEGE FEES. THIS ORDINANCE AMENDS 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 17   

ORDINANCE NO. 1344," was introduced by Commissioner Hartung, and legal notice 
for final action of adoption was directed. 
 
14-0608 AGENDA ITEM 28 – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance revising the 
Washoe County requirements for stormwater drainage and flood control service 
within Washoe County by providing options for when an applicant may choose to 
pay required stormwater facility connection privilege fees. This Ordinance amends 
Ordinance No. 1305; and if approved, set the second reading and adoption for July 
8, 2014--Community Services. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk, read the title for Bill No. 1718.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
  Bill No. 1718, entitled, "AN ORDINANCE REVISING THE 
WASHOE COUNTY REQUIREMENTS FOR STORMWATER DRAINAGE AND 
FLOOD CONTROL SERVICE WITHIN WASHOE COUNTY BY PROVIDING 
OPTIONS FOR WHEN AN APPLICANT MAY CHOOSE TO PAY REQUIRED 
STORMWATER FACILITY CONNECTION PRIVILEGE FEES. THIS 
ORDINANCE AMENDS ORDINANCE NO. 1305," was introduced by Commissioner 
Hartung, and legal notice for final action of adoption was directed. 
 
14-0609 AGENDA ITEM 29 – MANAGER 
 
Agenda Subject: “Presentation on Single Stream Recycling and possible direction to 
staff on a process to review potential options and changes to the current Garbage 
Franchise Agreement--Manager. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 Greg Martinelli, Waste Management, conducted a PowerPoint 
presentation that included the highlights of the franchise, the results desired in modifying 
the agreement, the recycling participation rates, the types of recyclables collected, photos 
showing neighborhoods on garbage and recycling days and how they would look with 
single-stream recycling, access to the transfer station, the discounted senior rate and the 
free yard service for handicapped customers, the current customer mix, the potential 
service options, and the compressed natural gas (CNG) fueling station. A copy of the 
presentation was placed on file with the Clerk. 
 
 Mr. Martinelli said developing a single-stream recycling program for the 
bulk of the customers was easy, but the challenge came in bringing up the rates for the 
other group that was not at that service level. He stated someone paying $12 per month 
could then be paying $18 or $20 per month, which no one wanted to see. He said how 
that was managed was one of the questions. He stated if the service level for the 25,000 
customers remained steady, it would be easy to calculate a number, because he would 
know what the exposure would be. But, if those 25,000 customers started migrating to a 



PAGE 18  JUNE 24, 2014  

lower service level, the economic model would be turned upside down, which would not 
work. He said that was one of the challenges and was some of the feedback he would like 
to hear from the Board. He stated regarding larger parcels, would a standard service level 
be adequate for them or would they want a larger level of service. He asked if that larger 
level of service would be provided on an optional basis or would there be a minimum 
number of containers.  
 
 Mr. Martinelli stated there might also be an option for a customer to call 
and request a cleanup service, which would be paid for on an as needed basis. 
Commissioner Hartung asked what an optional cleanup meant. Mr. Martinelli said if a 
customer did not have enough trash to get a dumpster, they would be given a per-yard 
estimate and then Waste Management would remove the trash. Commissioner Hartung 
stated he did not have a truck, so the four free dump days per year held zero value for 
him. He felt there were a lot of people out there who would not want to utilize that 
particular service. He asked if he could get up to four yards a year in a dumpster. Mr. 
Martinelli said that issue had never been raised, but it was something that would be 
reasonable if a customer would never use the free dump days. He stated the problem was 
the disposal trip would be embedded into the rate and might consist of two trips a year 
instead of four. He said that could be proposed in the scope of services and could be part 
of the standard services or could be added on as an option. He said there could be eight to 
ten options depending on the needs in the County and would not be out of the norm.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked about the stickers. Mr. Martinelli said the 
sticker program with the City of Reno was designed to deal with a customer’s excess 
trash. He stated when the single-stream recycling program was rolled out, they were 
aware the volume of solid waste would decrease and the volume of recyclables would 
increase, and that was exactly what happened. Commissioner Hartung noted recyclables 
did not include yard waste. Mr. Martinelli said that was true. Commissioner Hartung 
asked if the larger parcels would still have 20 stickers a year. Mr. Martinelli said they 
would, but if the recycling program was used as designed, a lot of waste could be 
recycled instead of being placed in the customer’s solid-waste cart.  
 
 Commissioner Weber thanked Mr. Martinelli for his presentation. She felt 
most people would like single-stream recycling. She said she was concerned about 
property owners with large parcels. She asked if there was a way to take parcels of over 
an acre and create some sort of minimum service for them and then allow people to add 
more services. Mr. Martinelli stated obviously someone with five acres and horses would 
need more containers than just one 96-gallon cart. He said it had to be determined what 
the base-service level would be and there would be a set rate for additional carts.  
 
 Mr. Martinelli said it was a two-headed approach. He stated part of the 
motivation was to keep the County clean, and having everything in containers would 
minimize things blowing around. He said a single-family home on a standard lot would 
be a lot different than someone on a five-acre parcel. He stated his recommendation was 
to look at different levels of service as an option.  
 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 19   

 Commissioner Weber asked if Sun Valley had service through Washoe 
County. Mr. Martinelli replied Sun Valley was currently under Washoe County’s 
franchise, but their franchise fees were paid to the Sun Valley General Improvement 
District (SVGID) instead of to the County. Commissioner Weber asked if they had been 
notified that single-stream recycling with the County was being discussed. Kevin 
Schiller, Assistant County Manager, said staff was getting calls regarding single-stream 
recycling. He stated one of the key pieces was looking at how a public process would be 
instituted to obtain feedback. He stated his recommendation was to take this out to the 
public using the Citizen Advisory Board (CAB) process and to also create a portal where 
feedback could be provided regarding single-stream recycling. He said at the completion 
of that public process, some options based on that feedback would be brought to the 
Board.  
 
 Mr. Martinelli noted the feedback from Waste Management’s Reno 
customers indicated they felt the single-stream recycling was simpler because everything 
was in a container. 
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler said she got a lot of comments on this, and she 
was looking forward to bringing this to the CABs. She said what seemed to be of the 
greatest concern was people keeping their homes fire safe, while dealing with the large 
amount of yard waste generated by their pine trees. She said she was hearing a lot from 
her constituents that they did not want what Reno had. Mr. Martinelli stated the problem 
in Reno was identified during discussions with the elected officials and he came back 
with a solution, which was not the solution the City of Reno selected. He said Reno’s 
issue was more about what to do with the leaves in the fall. He felt that issue would come 
up again, and there was a variety of things that could be done in the County.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler said one of the complaints she received was 
Waste Management was a monopoly. She stated they had been wonderful providers of 
service, but they had not done themselves any favors because people now had to pay for 
what had always been removed for free. She said that was a problem for the Commission, 
and the Commission had to figure out the best way to resolve that problem. She felt it 
would be important to do as much public exposure as possible and to come up with as 
many options as possible for the County’s constituents. Mr. Martinelli replied what the 
public did not understand was there was a contract and neither party could unilaterally 
change it. He said they would have to work together to make the changes that would 
work for everyone.  
 
 Commissioner Jung said she and her constituents appreciated the free 
dump days and the stickers. She asked him to explain the franchise fees and why they 
existed. She said Waste Management was responsible for picking up all of our waste, and 
imagine what would happen if the pickups stopped for even a week. She stated the 
contracts were entered into so there would not be the infighting between companies, 
breaks in service, and constantly having to deal with new contracts. She said it might be 
good to present that information at a town hall in Sun Valley and to take it to the CABs.  
 



PAGE 20  JUNE 24, 2014  

 Commissioner Hartung said he wanted to revisit the community outreach 
process, because not everyone was on a CAB’s mailing list. He asked if once the meeting 
times were established, could Waste Management send a card to their County customers 
about providing feedback. Mr. Martinelli said they had the ability to place an insert in the 
quarterly bills, but that could be a challenge depending on the timing. He noted nine 
mailings were done in Reno, but people did not look at the inserts. Commissioner 
Hartung said at least if someone called and said they had not heard about single-stream 
recycling, they could be told they were mailed a notice about the discussion. Mr. 
Martinelli stated a web site was developed for the Reno rollout and out of 62,000 
customers, 17,000 of them went to the web site and selected what size cart they wanted. 
He said they could do something like that to help get the message out. Commissioner 
Hartung stated something had to be done to get the message out or people would claim 
the agreement was amended without any public process.  
 
 Chairman Humke felt there would be a need for a series of town hall 
meetings here or in selected locations. He asked what Mr. Martenelli felt was the purpose 
of the franchise fee. Mr. Martinelli replied it was imposed by government and the rates 
varied among the various local governments. Chairman Humke asked if Nevada Revised 
Statutes (NRS) authorized the fee. Mr. Martinelli stated he believed so. Chairman Humke 
asked if the County gave back the franchise fee and Waste Management did single-
stream recycling, would that pencil out for Waste Management. Mr. Martinelli replied he 
would have to do the math. Chairman Humke asked if the City of Sparks was doing 
single-stream recycling. Mr. Martinelli said they were looking at it.  
 
 Chairman Humke said some stated what Waste Management did was a 
monopoly, and he asked if it would be correct to say Waste Management was a highly 
regulated utility. Mr. Martinelli stated a franchise was a legalized monopoly. Chairman 
Humke asked what would be the timeframe for the agreement. Mr. Martinelli said if the 
discussions could be completed by this year, the program could be implemented next 
year. He noted the change to single-stream recycling would require a minimum of 41,000 
carts, which could not be manufactured overnight. Chairman Humke said this 
information had been very helpful, and he thanked Mr. Martinelli for coming.  
 
 Mr. Schiller said regarding the public process, he heard the Board wanted 
this information presented at the CABs and at town hall meetings, and to have a portal 
system. Commissioner Hartung asked if staff had enough direction regarding the menu of 
options the Board would like to see. Mr. Schiller said as this was moved out into the 
public process, he would do some type of a template in conjunction with Waste 
Management around the options, so they could be sorted by the rating based on the 
feedback.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler asked if the Incline Village General 
Improvement District (IVGID) had renewed its agreement based on single-stream 
recycling. Mr. Martinelli said it was on the agenda. He stated the General Manager was 
new, and he wanted to get a better idea of the issue regarding the cost of the bear-proof 
containers. He stated he still wanted to move forward with implementing the program 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 21   

next year. He said there was a blue-bag single-stream program, but no crates. He believed 
it would be on IVGID’s September 24th agenda.  
 
 There was no public comment or action taken on this item. 
 
14-0610 AGENDA ITEM 30 – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Presentation and update on medical marijuana establishments in 
the State of Nevada and Washoe County. Possible direction to staff on medical 
marijuana dispensary allocations and other matters pertinent to medical marijuana 
establishments in Washoe County--Community Services.” 
 
 Kevin Schiller, Assistant County Manager, conducted a PowerPoint 
Presentation, which included a legislative overview, the federal laws and enforcement, 
the types of facilities, the regulatory agency, the application process, the point values for 
State applications, the Washoe County licensure, the MME Working Group highlights, 
regulatory changes, the MME requirements, the fee structure, and the dispensary 
allocation.  
 
 Mr. Schiller noted the fee recommendation would be brought back to the 
Board for specific action. He said he would be giving the Board parcel and zoning maps, 
which would identify eligible parcels, on an ongoing basis; and the applicants who 
received the provisional zoning letter would be plotted on the maps. He stated that letter 
was required for moving forward in the State’s application process. He said the green 
indicated the eligible parcels on the sampling of the maps he provided.  
 
 Commissioner Jung asked if there was an outside attorney on retainer at 
this point. Mr. Schiller replied there was not. Commissioner Jung said until we had an 
attorney to determine what the County was permitted to do under Nevada Revised 
Statues (NRS), we had to go with the very watered-down fees. As the Board’s liaison to 
the Medical Marijuana Working Group, she assured the attorney’s marching orders 
would be to focus on cost recovery. She said they heard Commissioner Berkbigler’s 
concern how this would affect law enforcement and what those projections would be. She 
stated staff had been asked to keep track of any phone calls, because a lot of staff time 
had already been invested in this. She said staff was doing the best they could without an 
attorney. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung said he knew there would be a cost-recovery plan 
in place for anything located within the unincorporated area of the County, but he asked 
if the County garnered any additional income for properties inside the Cities’ boundaries. 
He stated he was asking about that in case the County decided to allocate additional 
facilities to one or both of the municipalities. Commissioner Jung replied the County 
always received its share of the property and sales taxes. Mr. Schiller stated those 
questions could be answered once legal counsel was retained. John Slaughter, County 
Manager, stated the sales tax was applied to every step in processing the product. 
Commissioner Hartung asked if that was the case even if a lab was only performing 



PAGE 22  JUNE 24, 2014  

labor, because typically labor was not taxable. Mr. Slaughter said he was not certain 
about the labs. Commissioner Hartung stated photography used to be considered 
manufacturing and the sales tax was charged because of that but, if a lab was only doing 
testing, they would not be manufacturing anything.  
 
 Chairman Humke understood the Special Use Permit (SUP) process was 
no longer possible under this schedule. Mr. Schiller stated the SUP was essentially taken 
off the table when the Code changes were passed. Chairman Humke said the County’s 
choices had to be made by August 12th. Mr. Schiller stated he hoped they could be made 
by July. He said the Board would be provided a packet at each meeting, which would 
show the applications by Commission District, to help the Commissioners make a 
determination on where they wanted the facilities located. Chairman Humke asked if the 
process from the State through the County was an applicant-friendly process. Mr. Schiller 
said based on the statutory scheme, the process was open-ended in terms of the applicants 
and their entry into the State selection process. He said the County had chosen to not do 
any level of pre-applicant screening, which meant anyone who met the requirements 
could receive a zoning letter and move forward. He stated the State was the ultimate 
authority in making a determination and would then provide to the County who the 
selected applicants were in rank order. Chairman Humke asked if staff was working on 
how to improve the law so the process could be improved. Mr. Schiller said he had a 
punch list, but believed medical marijuana would be the topic of a lot of discussion as the 
next Legislative Session started. He stated staff was trying to approach it from where red 
flags indicated the County could potentially have a risk and where the County would 
have some control in the process.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler said there were two metallurgy labs in the 
community, which would be the same thing as Commissioner Hartung was talking about 
earlier. Mr. Schiller said he would have an answer to that at the next meeting. 
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler said her concern had been regarding where the 
applicants wanted to locate their facilities but, due to the letter the County had to prepare 
for each applicant, we would see where all of the facilities would be located. She said that 
would give the Board the ability to space them appropriately. She stated she wanted to 
make sure the people putting in their applications actually had a place to go, whether it 
was in the Cities or the County.  
 
 Commissioner Jung said the City of Sparks did not want any of the 
County’s allocations, but the City of Reno did. She stated she wanted to hear what some 
of the proposals were from the City of Reno regarding revenue sharing, cost allocation, or 
recovery, so it would be a win-win for both entities. She stated it would clearly have to 
go before the Reno City Council, but if the decision had to be made by August, things 
should move quicker rather than slower.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung noted there could be as many labs or growing 
facilities as people wanted to open. Mr. Schiller said the number would be driven by the 
market. Commissioner Hartung stated assuming the County established a dispensary and 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 23   

the business failed, could that slot be reallocated to another location in one of the 
municipalities. Mr. Schiller said he understood there would be a period once a year where 
that would be looked at.  
 
 In response to the call for public comment, Dorea Shoemaker said she 
appreciated having the maps that showed the locations of the applicants. She encouraged 
the Board to remember that the City of Reno had a population that was more than double 
what the County’s population was.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 30 be accepted. 
 
14-0611 AGENDA ITEM 11 – MANAGER 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve an Interlocal Agreement between 
the Washoe County, Washoe County Health District, the Truckee Meadows Fire 
Protection District, the City of Reno and the City of Sparks to create a Regional 
Emergency Medical Services Oversight function for the management, measurement 
and improvement of emergency medical services--Manager. (All Commission 
Districts.)” 
 
 Earlier in the meeting, Commissioner Jung said Agenda Item 10, the 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection/Sierra Fire Protection District (TMFPD/SFPD) agenda 
item, did not have this Interlocal Agreement on it for action by the Board. Paul Lipparelli, 
Legal Counsel, confirmed there was no equitable item on the TMFPD/SFPD agenda for 
this item. He said the Interlocal Agreement would be brought for consideration by the 
Board of Fire Commissioners at a later meeting. He advised the Board could give 
direction to staff to do that under this agenda item. 
 
 John Slaughter, County Manager, said the Interlocal Agreement was the 
result of many months of discussion by himself, the two City Managers, the District 
Health Officer, the Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA) 
President, and the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) working group; and was in 
response to the Board’s direction of April 10th to draft the Interlocal Agreement. He 
stated the oversight function was in response to the TriData Study, which recommended 
it be added to allow for continually improving the performance of the EMS system, with 
having patient care as the ultimate goal. He said the Interlocal Agreement allowed for an 
annual review of the EMS response zone maps.  
 
 Mr. Slaughter stated 1.5 full-time equivalent (FTE) positions were 
established in the Health District to provide staff for the EMS Oversight Program. He 
said the Oversight Advisory Board would be composed of the County Manager, the two 
City Managers, the District Health Officer, a representative of the emergency room 
physicians, and a representative of the hospitals’ quality improvement programs. He said 
in the past, the County’s Manager had never been a part of that oversight, but was what 
the Health District did. He stated this Interlocal Agreement, through him, provided the 



PAGE 24  JUNE 24, 2014  

Board a voice in the process. He said he was aware there was a lot of discussion in the 
community about the EMS system regarding the changes happening with the responding 
agencies within the region, which would impact the EMS system.  
 
 Commissioner Jung asked if there would be a representative of the fire 
services on the Oversight Advisory Board. Mr. Slaughter replied there would not. He said 
there had been discussion about including the TMFPD Fire Chief, but the discussions 
concluded the membership of the Board was for the Chief Executives of the 
aforementioned jurisdictions. He and the TMFPD Fire Chief had a peer relationship with 
the other fire chiefs and had a different relationship with his Board of Fire 
Commissioners. He said as the Manager he answered to this Board, which was the same 
Board as the Fire Board, and he and the Fire Chief communicated quite frequently on any 
issues that came up. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung said after six months of data was gathered, he felt 
it would be imperative for Allison Gordon, Internal Auditor, to do an audit regarding the 
amount of time the fire crews spent on the scene and the time they spent assisting 
REMSA. He said that would quantify the absolute cost the TMFPD was incurring in 
assisting REMSA. He felt it was important to understand that actual cost before too much 
time went by. He said it was being portrayed that there was no cost, because REMSA was 
a nonprofit public service, but the reality was very different.  
 
 Kevin Dick, District Health Officer, said he anticipated the data 
Commissioner Hartung was referring to would be compiled and analyzed as part of this 
process. He advised they were already meeting with the fire agencies and squaring away 
the data that would be collected across the system to see when the TMFPD arrived on the 
scene, when REMSA arrived on the scene, when the patient was transported, and when 
the handover occurred. Commissioner Hartung believed the two Cities would also be 
interested in having that same data. Mr. Dick said they were working with the Cities to 
pull their data, so there could be a similar type of analysis done across the agencies and 
across the entire system. Commissioner Hartung said this was not an opportunity to beat 
on REMSA, but there did need to be a little more transparency regarding how much it 
cost to have the TMFPD’s fire crews respond first, especially with some of the changes 
occurring within the County.  
 
 Commissioner Weber asked if there would be an opportunity to have 
alternates for the Board. Mr. Dick said the desire was to have staff work to schedule the 
meetings to ensure the Managers would be present. Chairman Humke stated the 
Managers formed this Board with each of the entities’ authorization, and he wanted to 
respect that. He agreed it was a good question. He asked the County Manager to consider 
the request. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Hartung, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 11 be approved. 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 25   

The Interlocal Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes 
thereof. 
 
14-0612 AGENDA ITEM 13 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve settlement of the claim Veronica 
Frenkel against Washoe County, et al for all claims--Risk Management. (All 
Commission Districts.)” 
 
 Commissioner Hartung said based on the discussion with Legal Counsel 
and on the threat of litigation, he made a motion to approve the settlement of the claim by 
Veronica Frenkel against Washoe County subject to the claimant signing the Settlement 
Agreement and related documents on or about June 30, 2014. Commissioner Berkbigler 
seconded the motion.  
 
 Chairman Humke asked if the motion could be changed to allow two days 
for the claimant to sign the agreement. Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel, said the claimant’s 
legal representative was out of the State, but he believed he would return on Thursday. 
He said the claimant’s legal representative might desire to have one more opportunity to 
converse with his client, and he would hate for this to expire before he had a reasonable 
chance to do so. Chairman Humke said he took that as there being no desire to amend the 
motion.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On the call for the question, the motion was 5-0 in favor of the motion.  
 
14-0613 AGENDA ITEM 31 – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public input and Board discussion and possible direction to 
Commissioner Hartung (representative to the Nevada Land Management Task 
Force) in regards to Washoe County concerns with the State of Nevada potentially 
acquiring and managing federal lands within Washoe County--Community 
Services. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 Bill Whitney, Planning and Development Division Director, said the 
federal lands issue had been before the Board eight times since last August. He conducted 
a PowerPoint presentation, which was based on a Reno Gazette-Journal (RGJ) article 
(Attachment C) that provided a good explanation of the history of the federal land 
ownership in the State.  
 
 Mr. Whitney said on May 13, 2014, the Board learned about the phased 
approach by the Nevada Land Management Task Force regarding the transfer of federal 
lands to the State. He stated the Board also directed staff to put this item on the agenda to 
allow the public to express their opinions in front of this Board.  
 



PAGE 26  JUNE 24, 2014  

 Mr. Whitney said Attachment A included in the staff report contained the 
10 recommendations by the Nevada Land Management Task Force to the Legislative 
Committee regarding the public lands in Nevada.  
 
 Mr. Whitney said the report by the Task Force was in draft form. He stated 
making the draft final might be approved by the Task Force in July. He conducted a 
PowerPoint presentation that reviewed the recommendations. A copy of the presentation 
was placed on file with the Clerk.  
 
 He said the lands would be transferred based on a phased approach, with 
the lands in the first phase being based on the creation of revenue. Commissioner 
Hartung clarified the creation of revenue was not always based on the sale or disposal of 
the land. Mr. Whitney said the map (referred to as the checkerboard map) in the staff 
report, illustrated the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) administered parcels within 
the original Central Pacific Railroad corridor along Interstate I-80. He stated the Task 
Force included all of the parcels as part of Phase I, except for the 3,000 acre or larger 
pieces, but they included those larger pieces within Phase I at their latest meeting. He 
said Phase I went from 4.2 million acres to close to 7 million acres. Commissioner 
Hartung noted the large piece near Pyramid Lake was being requested by the Pyramid 
Lake Piute Tribe. He said the piece to the west in Hungry Valley was being requested by 
the Hungry Valley Tribe.   
 
 Mr. Whitney said the other large red areas within Washoe County in Phase 
I were way down south and consisted of the mountains between East Lake, Washoe 
Valley, and Storey County. He stated that area was of concern, because it was acquired 
20 some years ago. He said local government worked with the BLM to block up their 
checkerboard pattern of ownership in those mountains, so it would consist of solid public 
ownership used for recreation, cultural, sensitive species, wildlife habitat, and open 
space. He said it was important that local government had more control over the disposal 
of those lands if they were transferred to the State.  
  
 Mr. Whitney said one area just north of I-80 in the east Truckee Canyon 
had large blocked-up areas of red. He advised those areas were acquired by the BLM at 
the urging of Washoe County quite a few years ago for the same reasons as noted for the 
mountainous area mentioned earlier.  
 
5:02 p.m. Commissioner Jung left the meeting during Mr. Whitney’s presentation. 
  
 When discussing Recommendation 7, Commissioner Hartung said that 
language was part of the recommendation due to the amount of land in Clark County that 
Las Vegas was gobbling up for private use. He stated there was not a lot of that type of 
land in Washoe County. He felt it was important to remind everyone that this was not just 
about Washoe County, but was about counties throughout the State. He said each county 
had different goals on how to manage the lands adjacent to their municipalities.  
 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 27   

 Mr. Whitney said regarding Recommendation 8, payment in lieu of taxes 
(PILT) payments, the Board’s concern would be to have the revenue replaced due to the 
loss of any PILT payments.  
 
 After concluding his presentation on the 10 recommendations, Mr. 
Whitney said the Board wanted this item on the agenda to give the citizens an 
opportunity for public comment and Commissioner Hartung, as the Board’s 
representative on the Task Force, was looking for direction. 
 
 In response to the call for public comment, Jeffrey Church said he favored 
moving the federal lands to the State government and the local governments, because it 
allowed for greater input when dealing with the federal government and brought the 
decision-making closer to the people. He stated right behind his property on Fawn Lane 
was 375 acres belonging to the U.S. Forrest Service that were pristine and provided a 
buffer between the City of Reno and the Callahan Ranch area. He asked the Board to 
consider that in 50 years that acreage could be a Rancho San Rafael South or could be 
used for County purposes, and was land that should be acquired for our children’s 
children. He said information on that acreage was available on the Mt Rose Scenic 
Corridor’s web site. 
 
 Dr. Bill Tarbell encouraged Commissioner Hartung to continue going in 
the direction the Task Force appeared to be going in. He said people were angry due to 
regulatory environment we lived in, which had been building for a long time, and more 
local control might help mitigate the tension he saw throughout the State. He hoped this 
Commission would do its best to lead the way. 
 
5:12 p.m. Chairman Humke left the meeting during Mr. Tarbell’s comments. Vice 

Chairperson Weber assumed the gavel. 
 
 Jeanne Herman thanked Commissioner Hartung for his hard work on the 
Task Force. She noted there was only so much land, so we had to be careful with it, and 
she felt the local governments could handle the land better. She felt the County would get 
35 times more revenue from the land than what we got in PILT monies. She said she had 
been waiting her whole life to see this happen, and she felt the Board was on the right 
track.  
 
 Jane Lyon seconded the two prior speaker’s comments. She thanked 
Commissioner Hartung, and she felt the Task Force was going in the direction she hoped 
it would go. She stated the people would be much happier with local control. 
 
 John Hadder said the work the Task Force was doing was important. He 
stated a letter from Tina Nape mentioned there was a lot of focus on the economic value 
of the land, which should not be the entire focus. He said the land had a lot of unique and 
beautiful character within the County and had a lot of opportunity for recreation. He said 
all of those things should be considered and not just the economic impact. He stated 
managing the lands might end up costing more than anyone thought, and the County 



PAGE 28  JUNE 24, 2014  

should be very careful. He stated dealing with commercial projects on public lands had to 
go through an environmental review process, and a lot of companies found the process 
cumbersome. He asked if the County could perform the same kind of public review. He 
noted no environmental review was required in Nevada. He said there could be regrets 
later if there was no environmental review and there were detrimental impacts to the land 
and possibly to the people in the community located near it.  
 
 Alicia Reban asked the Board to continue requiring the future land 
managers of the public lands, which the Board’s constituents had already paid for, to 
provide access to trails, to provide a balance between motorized and non-motorized 
activities, to preserve wildlife habitat, to reduce the risk of fires, to do fire suppression, 
and to safeguard the quality and quantity of our drinking water. She said of significant 
concerns were lands brought into public ownership in recent years after long processes 
and significant public participation. She stated the Nevada Land Trust (NLT) was 
founded to help implement the vision of the Washoe County Commission and to help 
meet the direction given by the voters in 2000 when they voted to pay for nearly $40 
million for libraries, parks, trails, and open space, and she discussed what NLT did 
currently. She said the lands must continue to be protected by whatever agency was 
ultimately given responsibility for them, and they should remain in the public domain.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung said there were a lot of questions about access. He 
noted there was no appetite by any of the Board members or any other Board members he 
had contact with at the Task Force, to deny access to the public lands. He stated access in 
and of itself was economic development, because it provided a way for people to go out 
and do all manner of things. He said people having to buy guns, camping equipment, and 
such was a form of economic development.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung stated the Task Force was asked to conduct a 
study to address the transfer of public lands from the federal government to the State of 
Nevada in anticipation of Congress turning over management and control of those public 
lands to the State of Nevada on or before June 30, 2015. He said there had to be a 
concrete plan in place regarding the management and use of the public lands and the 
revenue had to be determined before moving forward. He stated on or before February 1, 
2015, a report containing all of the findings and recommendations would be submitted to 
the Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB) for transmittal to the 78th Session of the Nevada 
Legislature. He said the Nevada Legislature would inform Congress about what it was 
requesting. He said the Commission was just making a recommendation and this would 
not be the Commission’s decision.  
 
 Vice Chairperson Weber said the decision also would not be made by the 
Nevada Association of Counties (NACO). Commissioner Hartung stated NACO was 
compiling the data and would submit the final report to the LCB. Vice Chairperson 
Weber said it was important to note that each county was looking at this differently. She 
stated Elko County wanted all of the land, while Washoe County was looking at the 
costs. Commissioner Hartung noted Lincoln County also wanted all of the lands, while 
Clark County did not for the same reasons that Washoe County did not. He said that was 



JUNE 24, 2014  PAGE 29   

why the Task Force, through NACO, was asking for a phased process. He stated there 
was a lot of work to do and it would be a long process encompassing many years. Vice 
Chairperson Weber said these things moved slowly, because they were important issues. 
She said if anyone was interested, they should be present when the Legislative 
Committee discussed this issue.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler stated it was important to remind the public that 
this was not about getting “our” land back, because it was never Nevada’s land to begin 
with. She said the land belonged “in trust” to the people of America and had always been 
a part of the federal government. She thanked Commissioner Hartung for all of the work 
he had put into the Task Force and staff for the amount of time they spent. She said the 
goal was to get the land that would be strategic and would be of value for the County, and 
she supported what was done.  
 
 Mr. Tarbell raised his hand. Commissioner Hartung asked Mr. Tarbell to 
state his question. Mr. Tarbell believed the State Constitution provided a vote of the 
people would be required to approve any act of Congress to make the transfer. Paul 
Lipparelli, Legal Counsel, stated he would have to look into that.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if Mr. Whitney had enough information to 
assist him in preparing the report by this Friday. Mr. Whitney replied he did.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke and Commissioner Jung 
absent, it was ordered that the Board give Commissioner Hartung direction to the Nevada 
Land Task Force in regards to Washoe County acquiring and managing the existing 
federal lands within the County and utilizing the concept of a phased approach to acquire 
those federal lands.  
 
14-0614 AGENDA ITEM 32 – REPORTS AND UPDATES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Reports/updates from County Commission members concerning 
various boards/commissions they may be a member of or liaison to.” 
 
 Commissioner Hartung said he was at the Regional Transportation 
Commission (RTC) meeting in the Vice Chairman’s stead, and nothing of note happened.  
He stated at some point, the Board might want to look at requesting a budget for the 
County’s open space. 
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler said she would be at the Tahoe Regional 
Planning Agency (TRPA) tomorrow to take a tour of the Myers and Tahoe Valley areas, 
which would give her an idea what those area plans would look like, because we were in 
the process or working on our area plan. She stated on Thursday she and the Chairman 
would be going to look at two locations in the Incline Village/Crystal Bay area being 
suggested for the land transfer.   
 



PAGE 30  JUNE 24, 2014  

 Vice Chairman Weber said she did not attend the RTC meeting because 
she was in Southern California at the Huntington Beach Senior Center to see how their 
transit and food service programs were done for their seniors. She said they had volunteer 
drivers who drove vehicles owned and insured by Huntington Beach.  She said she and 
Commissioner Jung also attended a homeless workshop held at the University of 
Southern California (USC) while there. She stated some really good ideas came out of 
that workshop, and it all came back to the elected officials having the vision to move 
those types of programs forward.  
 
14-0615 AGENDA ITEM 35 – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The Commission will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. 
Comments are to be made to the Commission as a whole.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
 * * * * * * * * * * 
 
5:44 p.m. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned 
without objection.  
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      DAVID HUMKE, Chairman 
      Washoe County Commission 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
NANCY PARENT, County Clerk and 
Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners 
 
Minutes Prepared by: 
Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk  




















































































	14-0567 AGENDA ITEM 3 – PUBLIC COMMENT
	14-0568 AGENDA ITEM 4 – ANNOUNCEMENTS
	14-0569 AGENDA ITEM 5 - PROCLAMATION
	14-0570 AGENDA ITEM 6 - PROCLAMATION
	14-0571 AGENDA ITEM 7 – RESOLUTION
	14-0572 AGENDA ITEM 9 – APPEARANCE
	14-0574 AGENDA ITEM 8B – HEALTH DISTRICT
	14-0575 AGENDA ITEM 8C – MANAGER
	14-0576 AGENDA ITEM 8D(1) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0577 AGENDA ITEM 8D(2) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0578 AGENDA ITEM 8D(3) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0579 AGENDA ITEM 8D(4) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0580 AGENDA ITEM 8D(5) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0581 AGENDA ITEM 8D(6) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0582 AGENDA ITEM 8D(7) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0583 AGENDA ITEM 8E(1) – HUMAN RESOURCES
	14-0584 AGENDA ITEM 8E(2) – HUMAN RESOURCES
	14-0585 AGENDA ITEM 8E(3) – HUMAN RESOURCES
	14-0586 AGENDA ITEM 8F(1) – JUVENILE SERVICES
	14-0587 AGENDA ITEM 8F(2) – JUVENILE SERVICES
	14-0588 AGENDA ITEM 8F(3) – JUVENILE SERVICES
	14-0589 AGENDA ITEM 8G(1) – SHERIFF
	14-0590 AGENDA ITEM 8G(2) – SHERIFF
	14-0591 AGENDA ITEM 8H -- DONATIONS
	BLOCK VOTE -- AGENDA ITEMS 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, AND 25
	14-0592 AGENDA ITEM 14 – COMPTROLLER
	14-0593 AGENDA ITEM 15 – DISTRICT COURT
	14-0594 AGENDA ITEM 16 – MANAGER
	14-0595 AGENDA ITEM 17 – MANAGER
	14-0596 AGENDA ITEM 18 – SENIOR SERVICES
	14-0597 AGENDA ITEM 19 – SENIOR SERVICES
	14-0598 AGENDA ITEM 20 – SENIOR SERVICES
	14-0599 AGENDA ITEM 21 – SOCIAL SERVICES
	14-0600 AGENDA ITEM 22 – SOCIAL SERVICES
	14-0601 AGENDA ITEM 23 – HUMAN RESOURCES
	14-0602 AGENDA ITEM 24 – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0603 AGENDA ITEM 25 – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0604 AGENDA ITEM 12 – APPEARANCE
	14-0605 AGENDA ITEM 33 – CLOSED SESSION
	14-0606 AGENDA ITEM 26 – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0607 AGENDA ITEM 27 – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0608 AGENDA ITEM 28 – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0609 AGENDA ITEM 29 – MANAGER
	14-0610 AGENDA ITEM 30 – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0611 AGENDA ITEM 11 – MANAGER
	14-0612 AGENDA ITEM 13 – RISK MANAGEMENT
	14-0613 AGENDA ITEM 31 – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-0614 AGENDA ITEM 32 – REPORTS AND UPDATES
	14-0615 AGENDA ITEM 35 – PUBLIC COMMENT

